DTE ENERGY CO Form PRE 14A March 11, 2011

Table of Contents

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, D.C. 20549

SCHEDULE 14A

Proxy Statement Pursuant to Section 14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (Amendment No.)

Filed by the Registrant x Filed by a Party other than the Registrant o Check the appropriate box: x Preliminary Proxy Statement Confidential, for Use of the Commission Only (as permitted by Rule 14a-6(e)(2)) **Definitive Proxy Statement Definitive Additional Materials** o Soliciting Material Pursuant to §240.14a-12 DTE Energy Company (Name of Registrant as Specified In Its Charter) (Name of Person(s) Filing Proxy Statement, if other than the Registrant) Payment of Filing Fee (Check the appropriate box): x No fee required. o Fee computed on table below per Exchange Act Rules 14a-6(i)(4) and 0-11. 1) Title of each class of securities to which transaction applies: 2) Aggregate number of securities to which transaction applies: 3) Per unit price or other underlying value of transaction computed pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 0-11 (set forth the amount on which the filing fee is calculated and state how it was determined): 4) Proposed maximum aggregate value of transaction: 5) Total fee paid: o Fee paid previously with preliminary materials.

fee was paid previously. Identify the previous filing by registration statement number, or the Form or Schedule and the date of its filing.

o Check box if any part of the fee is offset as provided by Exchange Act Rule 0-11(a)(2) and identify the filing for which the offsetting

1)	Amount Previous	ly Paid:
2)	Form, Schedule of	or Registration Statement No.:
3)	Filing Party:	
4)	Date Filed:	
SEC 1913	(02-02)	Persons who are to respond to the collection of information contained in this form are not required to respond unless the form displays a currently valid OMB control number.

Table of Contents

One Energy Plaza Detroit, Michigan 48226-1279

2011 Notice of Annual Meeting of Shareholders and Proxy Statement

Date: Thursday, May 5, 2011

Time: 10:00 a.m. Detroit time

Place: DTE Energy Building

(Town Square; see map on the last page)

One Energy Plaza Detroit, Michigan 48226

We invite you to attend the annual meeting of DTE Energy Company (DTE Energy, Company, we, us or our) to

- 1. Elect directors;
- 2. Ratify the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP by the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors as our independent registered public accounting firm for the year 2011;
- 3. Vote on a Management proposal relating to a nonbinding advisory vote on executive compensation;
- 4. Vote on a Management proposal relating to the frequency of nonbinding advisory votes on executive compensation;
- 5. Vote on a Management proposal to amend the Bylaws to declassify the Board of Directors;
- 6. Vote on a Shareholder proposal relating to political contributions; and
- 7. Consider any other business that may properly come before the meeting or any adjournments of the meeting.

The record date for this annual meeting is March 8, 2011. Only shareholders of record at the close of business on that date can vote at the meeting. For more information, please read the accompanying 2011 Proxy Statement.

This 2011 Notice of Annual Meeting, as well as the accompanying Proxy Statement and proxy card, will be first sent or given to our shareholders on or about March 21, 2011.

It is important that your shares be represented at the meeting. Shareholders may vote their shares (1) in person at the annual meeting, (2) by telephone, (3) via the Internet, or (4) by completing and mailing the enclosed proxy card in the return envelope. Specific instructions for voting by telephone or via the Internet are attached to the proxy card. If you attend the meeting and vote at it, your vote at the meeting will replace any earlier vote by telephone, Internet or proxy. If your shares are directly held in your name as a shareholder of record, an admission ticket to the meeting is attached to your proxy card. Please vote your proxy, and bring the admission ticket with you to the meeting. If your shares are registered in the name of a bank, brokerage firm, or other nominee and you plan to attend the meeting, bring your statement of account showing evidence of ownership as of the record date. All shareholders who plan to attend the meeting must present a government-issued photo identification card, such as your driver s license, state

identification card or passport.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Lisa A. Muschong *Corporate Secretary*

Anthony F. Earley, Jr. *Executive Chairman of the Board*

March 21, 2011

Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials for the Annual Shareholders Meeting to Be Held on May 5, 2011:

The Proxy Statement and Annual Report are available to security holders at www.proxydocs.com/dte

Table of Contents

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INFORMATION CONCERNING VOTING AND PROXY SOLICITATION	2
QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS	2
Q: What is a proxy?	2
Q: What is a Proxy Statement?	2
Q: What are the purposes of this annual meeting?	2
Q: Who is entitled to vote?	2
Q: What is the difference between a shareholder of record and a street name holder?	2
Q: How do I vote?	3
Q: Can I change my vote after I have voted?	3
Q: Can I revoke a proxy?	3
Q: Is my vote confidential?	3
Q: What does it mean if I get more than one proxy card?	4
Q: What is householding and how am I affected?	4
Q: Can I elect to receive or view DTE Energy s annual report and proxy statement electronically?	4
Q: What constitutes a quorum?	4
Q: What are abstentions and broker non-votes and how do they affect voting?	5
Q: How does the voting work?	5
Q: Who may attend the annual meeting?	6
Q: How will the annual meeting be conducted?	6
Q: How does a shareholder recommend a person for election to the Board for the 2012 annual meeting?	6
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE	7
Governance Guidelines	7
Election of Directors and Vacancies	7
Board Committees	9
Election of the Chairman and the CEO; Presiding Director	9
Board Meetings and Attendance	10
Terms of Office	10
Executive Sessions	10
Assessment of Board and Committee Performance	11
Board Compensation and Stock Ownership	11
Codes of Business Conduct and Ethics	11
Communications with the Board	11
MEETINGS AND COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS	12
BOARD OF DIRECTORS RISK OVERSIGHT FUNCTIONS	14
BOARD OF DIRECTORS COMPENSATION	15
INFORMATION ON COMPANY EXECUTIVE OFFICERS	17
COMPENSATION COMMITTEE INTERLOCKS AND INSIDER PARTICIPATION	17
INDEMNIFICATION AND LIABILITY	18
SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS	19
SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE	20
SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS	20
CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS	21

Table of Contents 6

i

Table of Contents

PROPOSAL NO. 1 ELECTION OF DIRECTORS	22		
Nominees for Election at this Meeting for Terms Expiring in 2014	23		
Nominee for Election at this Meeting for a Term Expiring in 2013	25		
Directors Whose Present Terms Continue Until 2012	26		
Directors Whose Present Terms Continue Until 2013	28		
PROPOSAL NO. 2 RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERI	ED		
PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM	30		
Fees to the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm			
Policy on Audit Committee Pre-Approval of Audit and Permissible Non-Audit	31		
Services of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm	31		
Report of the Audit Committee	31		
PROPOSAL NO. 3 MANAGEMENT PROPOSAL Nonbinding Advisory Vote on Executive			
<u>Compensation</u>	33		
PROPOSAL NO. 4 MANAGEMENT PROPOSAL Frequency of Nonbinding Advisory Votes of Nonbinding Advisory Votes			
Executive Compensation	34		
PROPOSAL NO. 5 MANAGEMENT PROPOSAL Amendment to the Bylaws to Declassify the	<u> </u>		
of Directors	35		
PROPOSAL NO. 6 SHAREHOLDER PROPOSAL POLITICAL CONTRIBUTIONS	37		
CONSIDERATION OF ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT MAY COME BEFORE	39		
THE MEETING	39		
EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION	40 40		
Compensation Discussion and Analysis			
Report of the Organization and Compensation Committee			
Summary Compensation Table	54		
Grants of Plan-Based Awards	56		
Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End	57		
Option Exercises and Stock Vested in 2010	59		
Pension Benefits	60		
Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation	63 64		
Potential Payments Upon Termination of Employment			
2010 DIRECTOR COMPENSATION TABLE	66		
2012 ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS	67		
Shareholder Proposals and Nominations of Directors	67		
SOLICITATION OF PROXIES	68		
MAP TO ANNUAL SHAREHOLDER MEETING			
ii			

Table of Contents

2011 PROXY STATEMENT OF DTE ENERGY COMPANY

INFORMATION CONCERNING VOTING AND PROXY SOLICITATION

OUESTIONS AND ANSWERS

Q: What is a proxy?

A: A proxy is a document, also referred to as a proxy card, on which you authorize someone else to vote for you in the way that you want to vote. You may also choose to abstain from voting. The Board of Directors (the Board) is soliciting proxies to be voted at the 2011 Annual Meeting of Shareholders and any adjournment or postponement of such meeting.

Q: What is a Proxy Statement?

A: A Proxy Statement is this document, required by the Securities and Exchange Commission (the SEC), which is furnished in connection with the solicitation of proxies and, among other things, explains the items on which you are asked to vote on the proxy.

Q: What are the purposes of this annual meeting?

- A: At the meeting, our shareholders will be asked to:
 - 1. Elect six directors. The nominees are Lillian Bauder, W. Frank Fountain, Jr., Mark A. Murray, Josue Robles, Jr. and James H. Vandenberghe for terms expiring in 2014 and David A. Brandon for a term expiring in 2013. (See Proposal No. 1 Election of Directors on page 22);
 - 2. Ratify the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for the year 2011. (See Proposal No. 2 Ratification of Appointment of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on page 30);
 - 3. Vote on a Management proposal providing a nonbinding advisory vote on the Company s executive compensation. (See Proposal No. 3 Management Proposal Nonbinding Advisory Vote on Executive Compensation on page 33);
 - 4. Vote on a Management proposal recommending a nonbinding advisory vote on executive compensation be held once every three years. (See Proposal No. 4 Management Proposal Frequency of Nonbinding Advisory Votes on Executive Compensation on page 34);
 - 5. Vote on a Management proposal to amend the Bylaws to create a declassified Board of Directors. (See Proposal No. 5 Management Proposal Amendment to the Bylaws to Declassify the Board of Directors on page 35);
 - 6. Vote on a Shareholder proposal relating to political contributions, if properly presented at the 2011 meeting. (See Proposal No. 6 Shareholder Proposal Political Contributions on page 37); and
 - 7. Consider any other business that may properly come before the meeting or any adjournments or postponements of the meeting. (See Consideration of Any Other Business That May Come Before the Meeting on page 39).

Q: Who is entitled to vote?

A: Only our shareholders of record at the close of business on March 8, 2011 (the Record Date) are entitled to vote at the annual meeting. Each share of common stock has one vote with respect to each director position and each other matter coming before the meeting.

Q: What is the difference between a shareholder of record and a street name holder?

A: If your shares are registered directly in your name with Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, Shareowner Services, (Wells Fargo), our stock transfer agent, you are considered the shareholder of record for those shares.

2

Table of Contents

If your shares are held in a stock brokerage account or by a bank or other nominee, you are considered the beneficial owner of the shares, and your shares are said to be held in street name. Street name holders generally cannot vote their shares directly and must instead instruct the brokerage firm, bank or other nominee how to vote their shares using the method described under How do I vote? below.

O: How do I vote?

A: If you hold your shares in your own name as shareholder of record, you may vote by telephone, through the Internet, by mail or by casting a ballot in person at the annual meeting.

To vote by mail, sign and date each proxy card that you receive and return it in the enclosed prepaid envelope. Proxies will be voted as you specify on each proxy card.

To vote by telephone or through the Internet, follow the instructions attached to your proxy card.

By completing, signing and returning the proxy card or voting by telephone or through the Internet, your shares will be voted as you direct. Please refer to the proxy card for instructions. If you sign and return your proxy card, but do not specify how you wish to vote, your shares will be voted as the Board recommends. Your shares will also be voted as recommended by the Board, in its discretion, on any other business that is properly presented for a vote at the meeting. (See Consideration of Any Other Business That May Come Before the Meeting on page 39).

If your shares are owned through the DTE Energy 401(k) plans (401(k) plans), see What shares are included on my proxy card? below.

If your shares are registered in street name, you must vote your shares in the manner prescribed by your brokerage firm, bank or other nominee. Your brokerage firm, bank or other nominee should have enclosed, or should provide, a voting instruction form for you to use in directing it how to vote your shares.

Q: Can I change my vote after I have voted?

A: If you hold your shares in your own name as shareholder of record, any subsequent vote by any means will change your prior vote. For example, if you voted by telephone, a subsequent Internet vote will change your vote. If you wish to change your vote by mail, you may do so by requesting, in writing, a new proxy card from the tabulator, Wells Fargo, DTE Energy, c/o Wells Fargo Shareowner Services, 161 N. Concord Exchange, South St. Paul, MN 55075, or you can request a new proxy card by telephone at 1-866-388-8558. The last vote received prior to the meeting will be the one counted. Shareholders of record may also change their vote by voting in person at the annual meeting. If you hold your shares in street name, you should contact your brokerage firm, bank or other nominee.

Q: Can I revoke a proxy?

A: Yes. If you are a shareholder of record as of the Record Date, you may revoke a proxy by submitting a letter addressed to the tabulator, Wells Fargo, DTE Energy, c/o Wells Fargo Shareowner Services, 161 N. Concord Exchange, South St. Paul, MN 55075, prior to the meeting. If you hold your shares in street name, you should contact your brokerage firm, bank or other nominee.

Q: Is my vote confidential?

A: Yes, your vote is confidential. The tabulator and inspectors of election will not be employees of the Company nor will they be affiliated with the Company in any way. Your vote will not be disclosed except as required by law or in other limited circumstances.

Q: What shares are included on my proxy card?

A: For shareholders of record The proxy card you received covers the number of shares to be voted in your account as of the Record Date, including any shares held for participants in our Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan.

3

Table of Contents

For shareholders who are participants in the 401(k) plan The proxy card serves as a voting instruction to the Trustee for DTE Energy common stock owned by employees and retirees of DTE Energy and its affiliates in their respective 401(k) plans.

For holders in street name Separate voting instructions will be provided by your brokerage firm, bank or other nominee for shares you hold in street name.

Q: What does it mean if I get more than one proxy card?

A: It indicates that your shares are registered differently and are in more than one account. Sign and return all proxy cards, or vote each account by telephone or on the Internet, to ensure that all your shares are voted. We encourage you to register all your accounts in the same name and address. To do this, contact Wells Fargo Shareowner Services at 1-866-388-8558.

Q: What is householding and how am I affected?

A: The SEC permits us to deliver a single copy of the annual report and proxy statement to shareholders who have the same address and last name. Each shareholder will continue to receive a separate proxy card. This procedure, called householding, will reduce the volume of duplicate information you receive and reduce our printing and postage costs. If you received one set of these documents at your household and you wish to receive separate copies, you may contact Wells Fargo, DTE Energy, c/o Wells Fargo Shareowner Services, 161 N. Concord Exchange, South St. Paul, MN 55075, or by telephone at 1-866-388-8558 and these documents will be promptly delivered to you. If you do not wish to participate in householding and prefer to receive separate copies of our annual reports and proxy statements, now or in the future, please submit a written request to Wells Fargo at the address listed above.

Similarly, if you currently receive multiple copies of this document, you can request the elimination of the duplicate documents by contacting Wells Fargo Shareowner Services at the address or phone number listed above.

Beneficial owners can request information about householding by contacting their bank, brokerage firm or other nominee of record.

Q: Can I elect to receive or view DTE Energy s annual report and proxy statement electronically?

A: Yes. If you are a shareholder of record, you may elect to receive the Company s annual report and proxy materials electronically rather than in printed form.

If you wish to provide your consent and enroll in this service, log on to www.ematerials.com/dte, where step-by-step instructions will prompt you through the enrollment process. Starting with the 2012 meeting, you will receive an e-mail notification directing you to the Web site hosting the annual report and proxy statement as well as voting instructions for voting via the Internet.

By consenting to electronic delivery, you are stating that you currently have, and expect to have in the future, access to the Internet. If you do not currently have, or expect to have in the future, access to the Internet, please do not elect to have documents delivered electronically, as we will rely on your consent and will not deliver paper copies of future annual reports and proxy materials.

If you do not sign-up for electronic delivery, we will continue to mail you printed copies of the materials.

To view the current year s proxy statement and annual report on Form 10-K, please visit our website at www.proxydocs.com/dte. There you will be able to view, search and print the documents. We also post these materials on our website at www.dteenergy.com, in the Investors Reports & Filings section as soon as they are available so you may view them. To vote on the current year s proxy, please refer to the question How Do I Vote? above.

Q: What constitutes a quorum?

A: There were 169,371,631 shares of our common stock outstanding on the Record Date. Each share is entitled to one vote with respect to each director position and each other matter coming before the annual

4

Table of Contents

meeting. A majority of these outstanding shares present or represented by proxy at the meeting constitutes a quorum. A quorum is necessary to conduct an annual meeting.

Q: What are abstentions and broker non-votes and how do they affect voting?

A: *Abstentions* If you specify on your proxy card that you wish to abstain from voting on an item, your shares will not be voted on that particular item. Abstentions are counted toward establishing a quorum but not toward determining the outcome of the proposal to which the abstention applies.

Broker Non-Votes Under the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) rules, if your broker holds your shares in its name and does not receive voting instructions from you, your broker has discretion to vote these shares on certain routine matters, including the ratification of the appointment of the independent registered public accounting firm. The election of directors in an uncontested election, advisory votes on executive compensation and amendment of the company s bylaws are all non-routine matters. Consequently, your broker must receive voting instructions from you in order to vote with respect to proposals 1, 3, 4, 5 and 6 at our 2011 annual meeting. On routine matters, shares voted by brokers without instructions are counted toward the outcome.

Q: How does the voting work?

A: For each item, voting works as follows:

Proposal No. 1 Election of Directors The election of each director requires approval by a majority of the votes cast, i.e., each of the five nominees for terms ending in 2014 and one nominee for a term ending in 2013 must receive more than fifty percent of the votes cast at the meeting to be elected. You may withhold votes from one or more directors by writing their names in the space provided for that purpose on your proxy card. Withheld votes have the same effect as abstentions. If you vote by telephone or the Internet, follow the instructions attached to the proxy card. Your broker is not entitled to vote your shares on this matter unless instructions are received from you. You cannot vote for more than five directors for terms ending in 2014 and one director for a term ending in 2013.

Proposal No. 2 Ratification of Appointment of Independent Registered Public Accounting

Firm Ratification of the appointment of an independent registered public accounting firm requires approval by a majority of the votes cast. Abstentions are not considered votes cast and will not be counted either for or against this matter. Your broker is entitled to vote your shares on this matter if no instructions are received from you.

Proposal No. 3 Management Proposal Nonbinding Advisory Vote on Executive Compensation Approval of the Management Proposal requires approval from a majority of the votes cast. Your broker is not entitled to vote your shares unless instructions are received from you. Abstentions and broker non-votes are not considered votes cast and will not be counted either for or against this matter.

Proposal No. 4 Management Proposal Frequency of Nonbinding Advisory Votes on Executive Compensation Approval of the Management Proposal requires approval from a majority of the votes cast. Your broker is not entitled to vote your shares unless instructions are received from you. Abstentions and broker non-votes are not considered votes cast and will not be counted either for or against this matter.

Proposal No. 5 Management Proposal Amendment to the Bylaws to Declassify the Board of Directors Approval of the Management Proposal requires approval from a majority of the votes cast. Your broker is not entitled to vote your shares unless instructions are received from you. Abstentions and broker non-votes are not considered votes cast and will not be counted either for or against this matter.

Proposal No. 6 Shareholder Proposal Political Contributions Approval of the Shareholder Proposal requires approval from a majority of the votes cast. Your broker is not entitled to vote your

5

Table of Contents

shares unless instructions are received from you. Abstentions and broker non-votes are not considered votes cast and will not be counted either for or against this matter.

Q: Who may attend the annual meeting?

A: Shareholders of Record Any shareholder of record as of the Record Date may attend. Your admission ticket to attend the meeting is attached to the lower portion of your proxy card. Please vote your proxy, and bring the admission ticket with you to the meeting.

All Other Shareholders If your shares are registered in the name of a bank, brokerage firm or other nominee and you plan to attend the meeting, bring your statement of account showing evidence of ownership as of the Record Date. However, as noted above, you will not be able to vote those shares at the annual meeting unless you have made arrangements with your bank, brokerage firm or other nominee of record.

All shareholders will be required to present a government-issued photo identification card, such as your driver s license, state identification card or passport.

Seating and parking are limited and admission is on a first-come basis.

Q: How will the annual meeting be conducted?

A: The Executive Chairman of the Board (Chairman), or such other director as designated by the Board, will call the annual meeting to order, preside at the meeting and determine the order of business. The only business that will be conducted or considered at this meeting is business discussed in this Proxy Statement, as no other shareholder complied with the procedures disclosed in last year s proxy statement for proposing other matters to be brought at the meeting.

Q: How does a shareholder recommend a person for election to the Board for the 2012 annual meeting?

A: Recommendations for nominations by shareholders should be in writing and addressed to our Corporate Secretary at our principal business address. See the Shareholder Proposals and Nominations of Directors section of this Proxy Statement on page 67 for further information on submitting nominations. Once the Corporate Secretary properly receives a recommendation for nomination, the recommendation is sent to the Corporate Governance Committee for consideration. Candidates for directors nominated by shareholders will be given the same consideration as candidates nominated by other sources.

6

Table of Contents

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Governance Guidelines

At DTE Energy, we are committed to operating in an ethical, legal, environmentally sensitive and socially responsible manner, while creating long-term value for our shareholders. The foundation of our governance practices begins at the top, with the DTE Energy Board of Directors Mission Statement and Governance Guidelines (Governance Guidelines). The Governance Guidelines set forth the practices the Board follows with respect to Board composition and selection, Board meetings, the performance evaluation and succession planning for DTE Energy s Chief Executive Officer (CEO or Chief Executive Officer), Board committees, Board compensation, and communicating with the Board, among other things. The Governance Guidelines are also intended to align the interests of directors and management with those of our shareholders. The following is a summary of the Governance Guidelines, along with other governance practices at DTE Energy.

Election of Directors and Vacancies

Our Bylaws currently provide that the Board be divided into three classes, each class being as nearly equal in number as possible. At each annual shareholder meeting, the shareholders elect one class of directors for a three-year term, and elect any director who may be filling a vacancy in an unexpired term. However, our management has proposed and the Board of Directors has agreed that our Bylaws should be amended to declassify the Board of Directors. If this proposal passes, beginning with the 2012 annual meeting of shareholders, directors with expiring terms will be elected annually for terms of one year. For more details, see Proposal No. 5 Management Proposal Amendment to the Bylaws to Declassify the Board of Directors on page 35.

If a vacancy in the Board occurs between annual shareholder meetings, the vacancy may be filled by a majority vote of the directors then in office, and such person will be subject to election by the shareholders at the next annual shareholder meeting.

Under the Governance Guidelines, the Corporate Governance Committee periodically assesses the skills, characteristics and composition of the Board, along with the need for expertise and other relevant factors as it deems appropriate. In light of these assessments, and in light of the standards set forth in the Governance Guidelines, the Corporate Governance Committee may seek candidates with specific qualifications and candidates who satisfy other requirements set by the Board. We believe our Board should be comprised of directors who have had high-level executive experience, have been directors on other boards and have been tested through economic downturns and crises. Industry experience, regional relationships and broad diversity of experience and backgrounds are also factors in Board nominee selection. While we do not have a formal policy relative to diversity in identifying director nominees, we believe that it is desirable for Board members to possess diverse characteristics of gender, race, ethnicity, and age, and we consider such factors in Board evaluation and in the identification of candidates for Board membership. We believe this type of composition enables the Board to oversee the management of the business and affairs of the Company effectively. Information about the skills, experiences and qualifications of our directors is included in their biographies beginning on page 23.

The Corporate Governance Committee considers candidates who have been properly nominated by shareholders, as well as candidates who have been identified by Board members and Company personnel. In addition, the Corporate Governance Committee may use a search firm to assist in the search for candidates and nominees and to evaluate the nominees skills against the Board s criteria. Based on its review of all candidates, the Corporate Governance Committee recommends a slate of director nominees for election at the annual meeting of shareholders. The slate of

nominees may include both incumbent and new nominees.

Potential candidates are reviewed and evaluated by the Corporate Governance Committee, and certain candidates are interviewed by one or more Corporate Governance Committee members. An invitation to join the Board is extended by the Board itself, through the Chairman and the Chair of the Corporate Governance Committee.

7

Table of Contents

The Corporate Governance Committee screened director candidates and recommended to the Board that David A. Brandon be elected as a director. Mr. Brandon had been recommended as a potential candidate by the Chief Executive Officer of the Company at the time, Mr. Earley, and other executive officers. At the Board s June 24, 2010 meeting, Mr. Brandon was elected to fill a vacancy created by an increase in the size of the Board from 14 to 15 directors, to serve for a term expiring in 2011.

Composition of the Board and Director Independence

Our Governance Guidelines state that the exact size of the Board will be determined by the Board from time to time. Currently, our Governance Guidelines set the size of the Board at no less than 10 and no more than 18 directors.

Director Independence and Categorical Standards

As a matter of policy, in accordance with NYSE listing standards, we believe that the Board should consist of a majority of independent directors. The Board must affirmatively determine that a director has no material relationship with the Company, either directly or indirectly, or as a partner, shareholder or officer of an organization that has a relationship with the Company. The Board has established the following categorical standards for director independence, which are more stringent that the NYSE independence standards for former Company executives:

A director, for whom any of the following is true, will not be considered independent:

A director who is currently, or has been at any time in the past, an employee of the Company or a subsidiary.

A director whose immediate family member is, or has been within the last three years, an executive officer of the Company.

A director who receives, or whose immediate family member receives, more than \$120,000 in direct compensation from the Company during any twelve-month period within the last three years, other than director and committee fees and pension or other forms of deferred compensation for prior service (provided such compensation is not contingent in any way on continued service).

A director or a director with an immediate family member who is a current partner of a firm that is the Company s internal or external auditor; the director is a current employee of such a firm; the immediate family member is a current employee of such a firm and personally works on the Company s audit; or the director or immediate family member was, within the last three years, a partner or employee of such a firm and personally worked on the Company s audit within that time.

A director who is employed, or whose immediate family member is employed, or has been employed within the last three years, as an executive officer of another company where any of the Company s present executives at the same time serves or served on that company s compensation committee.

A director who is a current employee, or whose immediate family member is a current executive officer, of a company that has made payments to, or received payments from, the Company for property or services in an amount which, in any of the last three fiscal years, exceeds the greater of \$1 million or 2% of such other company s consolidated gross revenues is not independent until three years after the company falls below such threshold.

Contributions to a tax-exempt organization will not be considered to be a material relationship that would impair a director s independence if a director serves as an executive officer of a tax-exempt organization and, within the preceding three years, contributions in any single fiscal year were less than \$1 million or 2% (whichever is greater) of

such tax-exempt organization s consolidated gross revenues.

Applying these standards, the Board has affirmatively determined that a majority of our directors qualify as independent and have no material relationship with the Company. The independent directors are Lillian Bauder, David A. Brandon, W. Frank Fountain, Jr., Allan D. Gilmour, Frank M. Hennessey, Gail J. McGovern,

8

Table of Contents

Eugene A. Miller, Mark A. Murray, Charles W. Pryor, Jr., General Josue Robles, Jr., Ruth G. Shaw and James H. Vandenberghe. Directors Anthony F. Earley, Jr., Gerard M. Anderson and John E. Lobbia are not independent directors and may be deemed to be affiliates of the Company under the categorical standards. Mr. Earley is not considered independent under the Company s categorical standards due to his current employment as CEO of the Company; Mr. Anderson is not considered independent due to his current employment as President and Chief Executive Officer; and Mr. Lobbia is not considered independent due to his prior employment as Chairman and CEO of the Company and his son s current employment at the Company.

Board Committees

The Board has standing committees for Audit, Corporate Governance, Finance, Nuclear Review, Organization and Compensation and Public Responsibility. The Board committees act in an advisory capacity to the full Board, except that the Organization and Compensation Committee has direct responsibility for the CEO s goals, performance and compensation along with compensation of other executives, and the Audit Committee has direct responsibility for appointing, replacing, compensating and overseeing the independent registered public accounting firm. Each committee has adopted a charter that clearly establishes the committee s respective roles and responsibilities. In addition, each committee has authority to retain independent outside professional advisors or experts as it deems advisable or necessary, including the sole authority to retain and terminate any such advisors, to carry out its duties. The Board has determined that each member of the Audit, Corporate Governance, and Organization and Compensation Committees is independent under our categorical standards and that each member is free of any relationship that would interfere with his or her individual exercise of independent judgment. The Board has also determined that each member of the Audit Committee meets the independence requirements under the SEC rules and NYSE listing standards applicable to Audit Committee members.

Election of the Chairman and the CEO; Presiding Director

Our Bylaws currently provide that the Chairman may simultaneously serve as the CEO of the Company and shall preside at all meetings of the Board. In addition, the Board may elect an independent director as Presiding Director who would serve until the next annual meeting.

The Board believes it is in the best interests of the Company and shareholders for the Board to have flexibility in determining whether to separate or combine the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer based on the Company s circumstances. The Board has strong governance structures and processes in place to ensure the independence of the Board, eliminate conflicts of interest and prevent dominance of the Board by senior management. The Governance Guidelines and various committee charters provide for independent discussion among directors and for independent evaluation of, and communication with, many members of senior management.

Effective October 1, 2010, the Board decided to begin facilitating the transition of the Company s leadership from Mr. Earley to Mr. Anderson and as a result, they voted to separate the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. In this arrangement, Mr. Earley remains an employee of the Company, advises Mr. Anderson on strategic planning activities and uses his expertise and experience to represent the Company in various policy and business forums. Mr. Anderson will be responsible for the management of the Company and will generally set the agenda for, and lead discussions of, strategic issues for the Company. The Board believes that both Mr. Earley and Mr. Anderson are extremely qualified through their experience and expertise to fill these roles. The Board believes that this separation of these functions facilitates long term leadership stability, will not affect risk oversight and is in the best interests of the Company and shareholders.

Even with the separation of the CEO and Chairman roles, the Board continues to believe a good governance practice is to elect a Presiding Director from the independent directors. The Presiding Director will have such responsibilities

as required under the NYSE listing standards, as well as such other responsibilities as

9

Table of Contents

determined by the Board. On February 3, 2011, the Board unanimously re-elected Mr. Miller as the Presiding Director. As Presiding Director, Mr. Miller s duties include:

Calling regularly scheduled executive sessions; presiding at Board executive sessions of non-management directors or independent directors; and providing feedback regarding such sessions, as appropriate, to the Chairman and to the CEO:

Reviewing shareholder communications addressed to the Board or to the Presiding Director;

Organizing Board meetings in the absence of the Chairman; presiding at any session of the Board where the Chairman is not present;

Designating one or more directors as alternate members of any committee to replace an absent or disqualified member at any committee meeting, provided that, in the event an alternate member is designated for the Audit, Corporate Governance or Organization and Compensation Committee, the designate meets the Company s categorical standards for director independence and SEC requirements;

Consulting with the Chairman and the CEO in the selection of topics to be discussed when developing the annual Board calendar:

In consultation with the Board, retaining independent advisors on behalf of the Board as the Board determines to be necessary or appropriate;

Participating in the Organization and Compensation Committee s annual review and approval of the CEO s corporate goals and objectives and evaluation of the CEO s performance against those goals;

Reviewing and consulting with the Chairman and the Corporate Secretary on Board meeting agendas; and

Collaborating with the Chairman and the Corporate Secretary on scheduling Board and Committee meetings.

Board Meetings and Attendance

The Board met six times in 2010. A portion of each Board meeting was spent with the Chairman and no other management members. All of the incumbent directors attended at least 75% of the Board meetings and the meetings of the committees on which they served, 11 of whom had a 100% attendance record. The Board does not have a policy with regard to directors—attendance at the annual meeting of shareholders. All directors then in office attended last year—s annual meeting.

Terms of Office

The Board has not established term limits other than the current three-year terms of office (which will be reduced to one-year terms if Proposal 5 passes). However, the Corporate Governance Committee of the Board has established policies that independent directors should not stand for election after attaining the age of 75, unless the Board waives this provision when circumstances exist which make it prudent to continue the service of the particular independent director. Directors who are retired CEOs of the Company or its subsidiaries shall not stand for election after attaining the age of 70. Except for the CEO, who may continue to serve as a director after retirement for so long as he is serving as Chairman, current employees who are also directors will not stand for re-election after retiring from employment with the Company. Mr. Gilmour reached the mandatory retirement age in 2009 but consented to serve for one additional year in order to assist the Board with its transition plans for the Board s Finance Committee. Mr. Gilmour

was in a class of directors to be elected at the 2010 Annual Meeting of Shareholders and was elected to a one-year term expiring at the 2011 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

Executive Sessions

It is the Board s practice that the non-management directors meet in executive session at every regular Board meeting and meet in executive session at other times whenever they believe it would be appropriate. The non-management directors met in executive sessions (sessions without the Chairman, CEO or any representatives of management present) at all six Board meetings in 2010. At least once per year, the non-management

10

Table of Contents

directors meet in executive session to review the Organization and Compensation Committee s performance review of the CEO. The Presiding Director chairs the executive sessions of non-management directors.

Assessment of Board and Committee Performance

The Board evaluates its performance annually. In addition, each Board committee performs an annual self-assessment to determine its effectiveness. Periodically, the Board performs a peer review of all directors who have served one year or more. The results of the Board and Committee self-assessments are discussed with the Board and each Committee, respectively. The results of the individual peer review are reviewed by the Chair of the Corporate Governance Committee and discussed with the Corporate Governance Committee. The Chair of the Corporate Governance Committee discusses the results of the peer review with individual directors, as directed by the Corporate Governance Committee.

Board Compensation and Stock Ownership

The Company has established a Board compensation structure intended to provide compensation of approximately one-half cash and one-half equity. The Board has stock ownership guidelines that set specific Company stock ownership requirements based on the director s years of service on the Board. (See Director Stock Ownership on page 17.)

Codes of Business Conduct and Ethics

The DTE Energy Board of Directors Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, the Officer Code of Business Conduct and Ethics and the DTE Energy Way are the standards of behavior for Company directors, officers, and employees. Any waiver of, or amendments to, the Board of Directors Code of Business Conduct and Ethics and the Officer Code of Business Conduct and Ethics as it pertains to the CEO, the Chief Financial Officer, senior financial officers and other Executive Officers, as defined in the Security Ownership of Directors and Officers section on page 19, will be disclosed promptly by posting such waivers or amendments on the Company website, www.dteenergy.com. There were no waivers or amendments during 2010.

Communications with the Board

The Company has established several methods for shareholders or other non-affiliated persons to communicate their concerns to the directors.

Concerns regarding auditing, accounting practices, internal controls, or other business ethics issues may be submitted to the Audit Committee through its reporting channel:

By telephone: 877-406-9448

Or

By Internet: ethicsinaction.dteenergy.com

Or

By mail: For auditing, accounting practices or internal control matters:

DTE Energy Company Audit Committee One Energy Plaza Room 2441 WCB

Detroit, Michigan 48226-1279

For business ethics issues: DTE Energy Company Office of the Assistant to the Chairman One Energy Plaza Room 2343 WCB Detroit, Michigan 48226-1279

11

Table of Contents

Any other concern may be submitted to the Corporate Secretary by mail for prompt delivery to the Presiding Director at:

Presiding Director c/o Corporate Secretary DTE Energy Company One Energy Plaza Room 2459 WCB Detroit, Michigan 48226-1279

Periodically, we revise our governance information in response to changing regulatory requirements and evolving corporate governance developments. Current copies of the Governance Guidelines, committee charters, categorical standards of director independence and the codes of ethics referred to above are available on our website at www.dteenergy.com, in the Investors Corporate Governance section. You can also request a copy of any or all of these documents and a copy of the Company s annual report on Form 10-K, free of charge, by mailing your request to the Corporate Secretary, DTE Energy Company, One Energy Plaza, Room 2459 WCB, Detroit, Michigan 48226-1279.

The information on the Company s website is not, and shall not be deemed to be, a part of this Proxy Statement or incorporated into any other filings the Company makes with the SEC.

MEETINGS AND COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The table below r